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Chairman’s Statement

UK SBS started the year in an uncertain 
environment, anticipating the transfer of services 
and closure of the Company within two to 
three years. A number of factors, including the 
Machinery of Government changes, the creation 
of the Department for Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) and the passing of the 
Higher Education and Research Act halted this 
direction of travel. In July 2017 (after the period 

of this report), the Company’s owners agreed to 
jointly invest in and develop a new system solution 
for implementation in 2020 and continue joint 
ownership of UK SBS, leveraging and building on 
the previous and planned investment in the Shared 
Service Centre. This is a significant change on 
the previous decision, and one that will bring new 
challenges and opportunities that I am certain we 
will rise to.

Excellent progress has been made to improve and stabilise not only services, 
but the operating systems from which services are delivered, leading to more 
effective and efficient processes and improved performance. 

Despite the uncertainty that remained throughout the 2016/17 
reporting period, UK SBS kept its focus on the here and 
now, continuing to provide services to customers across the 
Research Councils, BEIS and other partner organisations. 
Excellent progress has been made to improve and stabilise not 
only services, but the operating systems from which services 
are delivered, leading to more effective and efficient processes 
and improved performance. This has only been possible due 
to the resilience, dedication and motivation of the people within 
UK SBS and the support of our clients and owners. It is likely 
that this approach helped influence our owners’ decision to 
retain UK SBS.

The governance arrangements for the Company remained 
unchanged from 2015/16, providing stable leadership through 
periods of uncertainty. The Chief Executive made a number 
of changes within the senior team and streamlined internal 
meeting arrangements to provide a broader, more resilient and 
collective leadership.

UK SBS has taken steps to strengthen the active management 
of risks, primarily through improvements to the control 
framework and a programme of planned IT work which has 
provided significant improvements to the operational security, 
resilience and stability of one of its platforms. UK SBS has 
developed plans to ensure that, with limited additional work, 
both its underpinning ERP systems will remain supported for a 
number of years providing a necessary contingency for BEIS 
and the Research Councils (transferring to UK Research and 
Innovation (UKRI) in April 2018).

In driving efficiencies, improving relationships and 
demonstrating flexibility, the Company has been able to 
provide its owners with the time to consider their future options 
and has positioned itself as a credible long term option within 
the BEIS Shared Service Strategy. I am very proud of the 
way the teams within UK SBS have stepped up to the mark, 
continued to provide services to a consistently high standard 
and delivered improvements to services and systems. 

With the positive change on the Company’s future, I am 
certain our people will respond professionally and rise to the 
challenges ahead. 

Tim Knighton 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Chairman
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Strategic Context
In June 2015, the then Department for Business, Innovation 
and Skills (BIS) Executive Board agreed a shared services 
strategy that would see the transfer of all services from UK 
SBS leading to the wind up of the Company in the period 
March 2018 to March 2019. Alongside this, a proposal was 
progressed, as set out within the Higher Education and 
Research Bill, for the Research Councils, Innovate UK and 
HEFCE’s Research and Knowledge Exchange functions to 
merge with the formation of UK Research and Innovation 
(UKRI) in April 2018. In July 2017 (after this reporting period), 
UK SBS’ owners jointly agreed to invest in and continue joint 
ownership of the Company, providing stability of service 
through the early stages of UKRI’s development and enabling 
a programme of business transformation and standardisation 
ahead of the implementation of any new system solution in 
2020.

At the start of the 2016/17 Financial Year the detail relating to 
the transfer of services (timing and destination for each service 
and/or for each client) was still unknown. UK SBS started the 
year in an uncertain environment but with a clear focus as set 
out within the Company’s three core objectives for the year:

1.  The stable delivery of services to agreed standards;

2.  To ensure value for money through effective alignment, 
utilisation, collaboration and sharing of resources;

3.  To input constructively to the BIS Shared Services (SS) 
and other Programmes and respond to short term 
programme requirements.

In line with the strategic direction and wider government 
initiatives, the UK SBS Board agreed the importance of 
appropriate sequencing and phasing of transfers to reduce 
complexity and risk. The early transfer of Grants Administration 
and Property Asset Management (PAM) was agreed following 
engagement with BEIS, RCUK and client organisations. 

On this basis:

•	 	Grants	Administration	Services	transferred	to	EPSRC	(on	
behalf of the other Research Councils) on 1 January 2017, 
ahead of the formation of UKRI as agreed by the UK SBS 
Board, the Research Councils and BEIS.

•	 	The	accountability	and	responsibility	for	the	services	
delivered by the PAM function transferred to BEIS and the 
Cabinet Office on 23 January 2017. Further information is 
provided on page 11.

The Machinery of Government (MoG) changes in June 2016 
created the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial 
Strategy (BEIS) from the merger of significant elements of 
BIS with the Department for Energy and Climate Change 
(DECC). Former BIS programmes, including the programme 
to take forward the shared service strategy, were closed while 
the newly formed BEIS underwent its own transition and 
developed its operating model. With transactional services to 
BEIS now delivered by two providers (UK SBS and Shared 
Services Connected Limited (SSCL)) on two platforms it was 
essential that the core department assessed options and 
developed its own shared service strategy. The decision was 
made by the Company’s owners in July 2017 to continue joint 
ownership of UK SBS and invest in and develop a new system 
solution for implementation in 2020. 

The decisions taken by BEIS and UKRI on the future shared 
service strategy have fundamentally changed the future for 
UK SBS as a Company, the direction for individual teams and 
services and the requirements placed on, priorities for and 
management of UK SBS over the period 2017/18 to 2019/20. 
The Shareholders had previously agreed to a proposal for the 
2016/17 Business Plan to continue unchanged for the first 
part of 2017/18, with a new plan to reflect the changes and 
requirements arising from the BEIS strategy to be presented to 
Shareholders for approval in the autumn. 
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CPI Performance between 1 April 2014 - 31 March 2017
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Further details on the ongoing change programmes relevant 
to UK SBS can be found within the Annual Governance 
Statement. UK SBS employees remained remarkably resilient 
and focussed throughout the period of uncertainty and, with 
further clarification on the Company’s future now received, we 
will work together and in partnership with owners to inform 
and support the effective establishment of UKRI and enable 
a programme of business transformation and standardisation 
ahead of the implementation of any new system solution.

This report highlights the Company’s financial and non-financial 
performance for the year, people developments, our response 
to change, key risks, mitigating actions and internal audit 
activity. It also outlines our engagement with shareholders to 
plan for the future.

Overall Service Performance – an 
ongoing trend of improvement
Despite the long-term uncertainty relating to the future for the 
Company, services and individuals, this has been the best year 
to date for service performance within UK SBS. Building on the 
Improvement and Efficiency Programme initiated in 2014/15, 
UK SBS has continued to focus effort on service delivery and 
2016/17 has seen the continued trend to effective and stable 
services and systems. This trend has seen the monthly CPI 
targets met rise from 50% in 2014/15 to over 90% this year 
(95% at year-end) as shown below. 
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Over the same period, efficiency improvements have delivered 
a 40% reduction in the annualised UK SBS cost of payroll and 
a reduction in customer complaints from peaks of 40 a month 
to less than 10 a month, as shown below. 

As well as an improvement in service we have seen significant 
improvements in our security, resilience and core controls as 
evidenced by audit; given the nature of our business and the 
increasing cyber threat this will continue to be a focus for us.

Despite the track record of improvements and uncertain future 
we are far from complacent. Whatever decisions are made 
and whatever the future, our role will be to ensure effective and 
efficient service provision for our clients now and in any future 
scenario.

Annualised UK SBS Cost of Payroll between 1 April 2014 - 31 March 2017

Customer Complaints Received between 1 April 2014 - 31 March 2017
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Service Performance in 2016/17 
Performance against the customer agreed Critical 
Performance Indicators (CPIs) is set out below for each service 
area, together with summaries of priorities and achievements.  

Human Resources and Payroll Service 
Delivery (HRSD)  
The HRSD focus for 2016–17 was to continue to build upon the 
significant improvements made in the previous year. Four out of 
five CPI’s in 2016-17 have been achieved, whilst continuing to 
reduce customer complaints and escalations. 

Key achievements in year were: 

•	 	successfully	delivering	a	number	of	client	exit	programmes	
including IPO; 

•	 	embedding	compliance	and	quality	assurance	measures;	
and

•	 	management	of	over	820	recruitment	campaigns	for	
Research Council clients.  

The target for Statutory Deadlines achieved was missed by a 
narrow margin of 0.3% due to human error in the submission 
of one of the Real Time Information (RTI) data reports to 
HMRC. Unfortunately, this happened on three occasions. 
Following an investigation in December additional steps were 
added to the process and monthly performance reverted to 
target for the Q4 period.  

Human Resources and Payroll 
Critical Performance Indicators

Target Volume 2015-16 2016-17

Payroll Transactions Processed by Deadline = 100% 9,915 
+ 19%

100.0% 100.0%

Payroll Error Rate (UK SBS errors) <= 0.5% 214,744 
- 10%

0.38% 0.16%

Statutory Deadlines Achieved = 100% 7,231 
- 12%

99.7% 99.7%

Ad Hoc Programmes Delivered to  
Agreed Targets

>= 95% 27 
- 58%

100.0% 100.0%

Percentage of Contacts Resolved by  
Target Date

>= 85% 75,623 
+ 15%

87.3% 91.7%
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Finance Service Delivery (FSD)
The priorities for 2016/17 were to continue to identify and 
deliver efficiencies through greater use of automation, 
refine key processes and continue to deliver a strong and 
professional service. Performance throughout the financial year 
was consistent and all Finance CPIs were met and in some 
cases exceeded. 

Key highlights include: 

•	 	successfully	introducing	invoice	scanning	and	data	
capture; 

•	 	harmonising	debt	recovery	action	over	the	two	Oracle	
platforms; and 

•	 	introducing	a	new	process	to	fast	track	purchase	
requisitions for non-procurement funding on Oracle 12.0.6, 
with over £400m of funding channelled through this 
process within the first nine months.

Finance Service Delivery 
Critical Performance Indicators

Target Volume 2015-16 2016-17

Supplier Invoices Processed in 2 Working 
Days of Receipt

>= 85% 219,808 
N/A

83.7% 91.5%

Debtor Days <= 60 days - Not available 3

Working Days to Complete Key 
Reconciliations (Issues Log 1)

<= 15 days - 14 days 13 days

Statutory Deadlines Achieved = 100% - Not available 100.0%

Purchase Requisitions Processed in  
3 Working Days (<£10K)

>= 95% 115,595 
- 8%

95.3% 96.1%

Percentage of Contacts Resolved by  
Target Date (Finance)

>= 85% 114,796 
+ 22%

67.4% 85.9%

Percentage of Contacts Resolved by  
Target Date (Generic Purchasing)

>= 85% - Not available 92.2%

Note: As part of on-going continuous improvement work, new CPIs were introduced early in the year to better reflect the breadth 
of service provided. 
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Grants
Responsibility for Grants Administration transferred, along with 
the team, to EPSRC (on behalf of the Research Councils) on 
1 January 2017. The table below covers the period April to 
December 2016, at which point all CPIs were being met.

Grants Critical  
Performance Indicators

Target Volume 2015-16 2016

Call/Scheme Set Up by Launch Date = 100% 236 
N/A

99.7% 100.0%

Applications Released Within 5 Working Days 
to Clients

>= 95% 12,991 
N/A

99.2% 99.9%

Offers Prepared Within 10 Working Days >= 95% 2,934 
N/A

92.7% 98.9%

UK SBS Error Rate on Offers Returned at 
Authorisation Stage

<= 1% 2,378 
N/A

1.4% 1.0%

Grant Payments Made On Time & Accurately >= 99% 23,743 
NA

100.0% 100.0%

Percentage of Contacts Resolved by  
Target Date

>= 85% 23,433 
NA

82.8% 87.9%
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Procurement
The focus for 2016/17 was to continue the improvement plan 
that had led to a ‘Moderate’ audit rating. Priority was given to 
further embedding the processes, culture and supporting the 
team through training initiatives, with the intention to deliver 
an improved customer experience. Internal Audit undertook a 
further audit and returned a ‘Substantial’ assurance opinion, 
noting that significant progress had been made. In addition, 
Procurement has been rated ‘Best’ in six areas, ‘Better’ in one 
and ‘Developing’ in one within the Government Commercial 
Operating Standards. 

The Procurement team was also recognised in the Chartered 
Institute of Purchasing and Supply awards, winning Best 
International Project for the team’s work on the Milan Exhibition, 
supporting the Department of International Trade. It was also a 
shortlisted finalist in the Government Opportunities awards in 
the category of Procurement team of the year. 

Five of the six CPIs for the year were met and a focus for the 
coming year will be in the area of contact resolution.

Procurement  
Critical Performance Indicators

Target Volume 2015-16 2016-2017

Procurement Benefit v UK SBS Managed 
Spend Ratio

>= 6% £850M 
+ 30%

6.7% 8.0%

Return On Investment (Procurement benefit v 
cost of service)

>= 9.7 - 10.7 : 1 17.8 : 1

OJEU Competitions Completed in  
Agreed Timescales

>= 95% 56 
+ 133%

95.8% 100.0%

Further Competitions in UK SBS Control 
Completed in Agreed Timescales

>= 95% 706 
+ 364%

94.7% 96.2%

Single Sourcing Actions (SSA) Completed in 
Agreed Timescales

>= 95% 315 
NA

N/A 97.8%

Percentage of Contacts Resolved by  
Target Date

>= 85% 438 
NA

68.3% 73.6%
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Information Systems Services 
The focus for the year centred on the re-platforming of the 
Oracle 12.0.6 (Research Council Oracle Estate (ROE)) platform 
over the 2016 Christmas period. The project has delivered 
significant performance and availability improvements and has 
laid the foundation for an application upgrade later in 2017. 
Alongside this project, service has remained stable and largely 
within SLA in terms of incident and request handling and 
overall availability. 

Four of the five CPIs were met with systems availability 
impacted by ROE; aggregation of all systems within a simple 
target has masked the impressive availability for other systems.

Information Systems Services 
Critical Performance Indicators

Target Volume 2015-16 2016-2017

Systems Missing Availability Target <= 0.5 
(avg)

5 0.8 0.9

Incidents Triaged Within 3 Hours >= 85% 47,421 
- 4%

89.5% 92.3%

Change Requests Delivered On Time &  
To Budget

>= 90% 87 
+ 28%

97.1% 100.0%

Major Security Incidents = 0 - 0 0

Percentage of Contacts Resolved by  
Target Date

>= 85% 43,408 
- 1%

88.5% 90.2%



11

Property Asst Management (PAM)
Accountability and responsibility for the services delivered by 
the PAM function transferred to BEIS and the Cabinet Office on 
23 January 2017, ahead of planned formal establishment of the 
new Government Property Agency (GPA) expected in autumn 

2017. PAM employees have been seconded to the Cabinet 
Office, with formal transfer anticipated once the unit is fully 
established; UK SBS retains the employment liability, as it does 
for other secondees, in the meantime.

Property Asset Management 
Critical Performance Indicators

Target Volume 2015-16 2016-17*

Net Internal Area Ratio Across the  
BIS Portfolio

<= 10m2 - 10.2m2 10.0m2

Business Days Lost Due to Facilities Issues = 0 days - 0 days 0 days

Meet PAM Service Level  
Performance Targets

>= 80% - 79.8% 72.8%

Manage KPI Compliance From  
Delivery Partner 

>= 85% - 95.7% 96.2%

* The Property Asset Management service transferred to Cabinet Office on 23 January 2017, so performance covers April 2016  
to January 2017.



12

U K  S B S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  A N D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S  2 0 1 7

Financial Performance 
The Company’s financial results for the year are set out in the 
financial statements from page 38 onwards. The reported 
result for 2016/17 is a £6.6 million loss (2015/16: £7.4 million 
loss), after including £9.1 million cost of depreciation and 
amortisation (2015/16: £9.3 million). The Company does not 
operate with the intention of making a profit. It operates on 
a full cost recovery basis, setting service charges that aim 
to allow the Company to break even before depreciation, 
amortisation, and the release of deferred income that covers 
certain elements of depreciation. On that measure, the 
Company made a small surplus of £0.7m in 2016/17 (2015/16: 
£0.2 million). This was achieved through close management of 
all costs while including increased expenditure on the security 
and resilience of IT systems. 

The net asset value at 31 March 2017 was £5.9 million  
(31 March 2016: £12.5 million). Further details are set out on 
page 39 of the financial statements. The major investments 
that were made in developing the Company’s main Oracle 
systems are nearly fully depreciated. Details of the non-
current assets are set out on page 48 in note 8 of the financial 
statements.

During 2015/16, the Company exercised the break clause in 
its lease of office space in North Star House, Swindon. During 
2016/17, our Swindon employees moved to the Research 
Council premises at Polaris House, Swindon. The relocation will 
lead to savings in accommodation costs and also co-locates 
employees with the Company’s Research Council clients.

Portfolio – Key Programmes
As part of our commitment to continuous improvement,  
UK SBS has formalised its portfolio of change projects, 
providing clearer prioritisation, management, reporting and 
resource allocation. The projects within the portfolio are 
many and varied including client requested change, business 
projects, technology portfolio improvement, the Exits and 
Restructures Programme, service transfers and the relocation 
project. During the accounting period for 2016/17 the UK SBS 
Portfolio and Programme Management (PPM) team have 
successfully delivered or assisted with the delivery of 109 
projects such as The Government Banking Service, Invoice 
Automation, HR Digitisation and various Oracle platform Client 
Exits.

As we look to the future we aim to ensure consistency 
and efficiency across the whole programmes and projects 
landscape, and part of this will be to work closely and 
collaboratively across UK SBS teams, and in particular with the 
ISS projects team. We will continue to evaluate and improve 
our services as we enter a period where critical internal and 
external change is upon us and where the efficient delivery of 
quality change projects is paramount.
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Security and Resilience Programme 
The need for investment in legacy systems, specifically 
those related to the Research Council Oracle Estate had 
been highlighted to and understood by clients for a number 
of years. A significant IT event in February 2016 which 
impacted Research Council and UK SBS services, kick-
started an agreed programme of work to update and transfer 
databases and applications to a new environment over the 
2016 Christmas period; this was a significant and challenging 
piece of work. Feedback from clients, users and service 
teams (regarding both the handling of the implementation and 
subsequent performance of the system) has been positive. 
The upgrade also brought benefits to security and resilience 
with the security assessment undertaken after the transfer 
indicating that the systems were well within the best practise 
threshold. 

In addition to providing greater operational resilience, security 
and improved performance through the current programme of 
work, UK SBS has developed plans to ensure that, with limited 
additional work, the system will remain supported for a number 
of years providing a necessary contingency for the Research 
Councils / UKRI and for the parallel (BEIS led) programmes.

Service Exits
The Exit & Restructure Group was established to manage 
client exits, restructures and the Machinery of Government 
(MoG) changes. During the last year, the group has managed 
27 different client changes, ranging from restructures through 
to complete exit of UK SBS services. 

Relocation  
The relocation of Swindon head office from North Star House 
to Polaris House completed in January 2017, on time and 
within budget. Further details about the relocation can be 
found on page 17.

Our People
The organisation’s objective for 2016/17 has been to maintain 
stable, efficient and effective services, supporting our owners 
in their changing business requirements – focusing on this has 
been at the root of our engagement with employees this year.

As has been mentioned elsewhere in this report, through the 
year we have delivered further service improvements and are 
now maintaining consistent quality services to clients.  It is 
of utmost credit to our employees that these positive trends 
have been delivered through a time of uncertainty for the 
organisation. We are proud of the achievements and more so 
of the people who have made it happen.

Our employees bring to work a strong sense of pride in 
delivering their best and an equally strong sense of shared 
responsibility for continuing to reduce costs and be more 
efficient where they can. The focus has been to ensure we 
have the right people, with the right skills in the right place. 
To help with this we continue to regularly monitor a range 
of factors including employee attendance, retention and the 
results of our quarterly employee survey. 

In 2016/17 overall employee numbers reduced by 13% 
through a combination of natural attrition, carefully managed 
recruitment and a limited voluntary exit scheme (accrued 
for in the previous financial year, see note 4 of the financial 
statements) to ensure our corporate overheads were matched 
to our requirements, contributing to a 25% reduction in 
administration costs. Operational services were not included in 
this to ensure service levels were maintained. 

In 2016/17 overall employee numbers reduced by 13%

273.5 F full time
equivalent
employees192.5 M
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Males Females

Board (excluding the 
Chief Executive)

3 4

Executive Team 
(including the Chief 
Executive)

3 1

Employees (excluding 
Executive Team)

193 299

Employees (Full Time 
Equivalent)

192.5 273.5

Supporting our Employees 
Acting as a regular temperature check, our employee survey 
gives the Senior Leadership Group insights to steer actions 
at corporate, directorate and team level. The trends across 
the year have shown a stable to increasingly positive outlook. 
There have been significantly positive results reflecting 
increasing trust in the leadership of the organisation but there 
is still work to do. 

January 2017 survey highlights were: 

•	 	77%	of	respondents	agree	or	strongly	agree	with	the	
statement ‘I speak positively about the services UK SBS 
provides’. 

•	 	86%	of	respondents	agree	or	strongly	agree	with	the	
statement ‘I have sufficient flexibility so that I can balance 
my responsibilities at work and home’. 

•	 	74%	of	respondents	agree	or	strongly	agree	with	the	
statement ‘Overall I am satisfied with working for UK SBS’.

Training and development continues to be a strong feature of 
the support offered to our employees. We provide a mix of 
mandatory and bespoke training to ensure legal compliance 
and support individuals’ needs and aspirations. This includes 
on the job coaching, professional qualification support, in 
house and external training, delivered face to face and by 
eLearning.

There is a strong commitment to open, transparent and timely 
employee communications, key to engaging employees. 
Popular with employees is the Chief Executive’s monthly team 
brief, supported by face to face briefings from members of the 
Senior Leadership Group and regular intranet news items.

We have, this year, redoubled our commitment to fostering a 
culture of inclusion having joined the UK’s Inclusive Employers 
network and developing a diversity group to guide actions 
across the organisation. Some of the first actions have been to 
review any unconscious bias in our recruitment processes. 

As in other years employees have continued to raise funds 
for local and national causes close to their hearts. As well 
as encouraging and supporting them in their charitable 
endeavours, the Company remains very happy to support 

events organised by our people. In 2016/17 over £2,700 was 
raised across our three sites through a range of activities 
including bake sales, raffles and collections and activities to 
mark local, national and international events. The organisation 
faced a particularly difficult and heartfelt incident in December 
of 2016 when a valued and respected colleague was killed. 
Teams and the organisation worked together to support each 
other and contributed over £7,500 to support our colleague’s 
family.

Diversity
At 31 March 2017, the numbers of males and females in the 
Company were as follows:

The proportion of our people who have elected to be identified 
as being from an ethnic minority is currently 41% (2015/16 
12%). This increase is likely due to an internal communications 
campaign for employees to update their Oracle records.

Employee Health
During 2016/17 the average number of working days lost 
through recorded sickness absence was 3.2% (2015/16 7.4 
days (3.0%)). The figure has been recorded as a percentage in 
order to more accurately reflect part time employee data. 
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Internal Governance
The Chief Executive simplified and strengthened internal 
Executive governance arrangements to align with the Board 
and Audit Committee and to ensure cohesive portfolio and 
project management. The latter is essential for ensuring that 
all business as usual and projects relating to or arising from 
the BEIS Shared Service Strategy and other programmes are 
managed consistently and collectively and dependencies and 
risks are identified and addressed.  

Managing Risks and Controls
The Government Internal Audit Agency (GIAA) continues to 
provide the Company’s internal audit function and in 2016/17 
undertook 10 audits. Improvements seen in 2015/16 relating 
to risk management have been maintained, evidenced by 
both the customer facing and internal controls receiving end 
of year ‘Moderate’ assurance opinions. The Head of Internal 
Audit’s annual report is summarised in the Annual Governance 
Statement, noting an overall positive trend in internal audit 
opinions, a reduction of high priority recommendations 
identified and no audits reporting ‘unsatisfactory’ opinion in 
2016/17.  

Following the internal audit of the Company’s Risk 
Management in 2015/16, considerable work was completed 
to improve the risk and control framework approach and 
supporting documentation so as to ensure consistent 
and appropriate application across the Company, with a 
‘Moderate’ opinion given for the 2016/17 Governance and Risk 
Management audit; the opinion would have been ‘Substantial’ 
without concerns regarding governance of the PAM and 
Procurement functions (explained further within the Annual 
Governance Statement).

Our Corporate Risk Register is reviewed at every Board and 
Audit Committee meeting, with the risk appetite last fully 
reviewed by the Board in February 2016. Risk appetite will be 
reconsidered in the context of the BEIS Shared Service 

Strategy decision received in July 2017. Each department 
maintains their own directorate risk registers for those 
operational risks and issues that are below the Company’s 
risk appetite threshold levels as set by the Board, as well as a 
procedural driven Risk and Control framework.

A number of the risks with which we started the year have 
been successfully mitigated; stabilising legacy systems/
infrastructure, preparing for service transfers as part of a wider 
(then) BIS led programme and the facilitation of MoG changes 
alongside BAU. However, despite ongoing mitigating activity, 
some corporate risks remain on the Corporate Risk Register 
for 2017/18: cyber-attack (information security) and maintaining 
appropriate capacity, capability and engagement with 
employees in light of the impact of the BEIS shared service 
strategy direction. Risk response plans have been identified, 
assessed and actions will continue throughout the year to 
continue to mitigate these ongoing risks.
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2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Cost (000) FTE* Cost (000) FTE* Cost (000) FTE* Cost (000) FTE*

653 849.2 497 738.2 340 563.9 339 538.8

In 2016/17, our people travelled approximately 1.1 million km on Company business and 76% of this was undertaken using public 
transport. Domestic flights accounted for approximately 7 thousand km travelled.

* Average FTE numbers including contractors

Managing our Footprint
The UK SBS Corporate Social Responsibility Policy sets out 
the principles for managing our environmental impact.

Travel
The table below shows expenditure on total travel over the 
last four years. Careful management of travel has enabled 
a reduction in annual travel cost from £653k in 2013/14 to 
£339k in 2016/17. The majority of travel (65% in 2016/17) 
is undertaken by a small number of people in the PAM and 
Procurement teams as required by the nature of their roles.

Paper
The Company uses 75% recycled A4 and A3 paper (made 
from post-consumer waste using low CO2 production 
methods).

Expenditure on total travel
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Buildings
2016/17 saw the relocation of all UK SBS Swindon operations 
and employees from North Star House to Polaris House, with 
all moves completed by late January 2017. The relocation 
resulted in our overall footprint reducing by 48%, with our Net 
Internal Area (NIA) reduced from 4,860sqm to 2,298sqm. 

UK SBS occupied North Star House under a commercial 
contract; the extent to which the Company had direct influence 
over buildings emissions and use of scarce resources was 
limited. Prior to the relocation, the Company operated 
over four sites; North Star House, Swindon (Head Office 
accommodating over 80% of our people), Polaris House, 
Swindon, Concept House, Newport and Queensway House, 
Billingham. All sites, with the exception of North Star House, 
are owned or managed by other BEIS Partner Organisations 
who report on energy usage, water consumption and waste 
generation in their Annual Reports. The Company complies 
with energy, water and waste management measures in 
operation at each site. Energy and water usage and waste 
production and recycling for each North Star House tenant 
was calculated on the basis of floor space and occupancy. 
In-year reductions to the Company’s estimated usage have 
been supported by an in-year reduction in floor space and 
occupancy as a result of a phased move to Polaris House.

Polaris House is owned by the Research Councils and is 
managed by the Joint Building Operations Services (JBOS). 
The building has been awarded, and implements, an 
Environmental Management system (EMS) via ISO 14001 and 
successfully retained its ISO 14001 accreditation in February 
2017. JBOS is responsible for the EMS and environmental 
aspects of the campus.

JBOS set a target of reducing waste disposal to landfill by 
five per cent by 2017; this target has been met with all waste 
produced at Polaris House recycled or incinerated and energy 
recovery undertaken where possible. Reporting on the actual 
quantities of waste disposal will not be available until after the 
publication of this document.

As at 31 March 2017, it can be reported that: 

•	 	Low	energy	‘LED’	type	lighting	is	being	installed	within	the	
areas of Polaris House that are undergoing refurbishment, 
together with automatic PIR lighting control.

•	 	LED	lighting	has	been	installed	within	the	multi	storey	car	
park as well as PIR Lighting Control.

•	 	A	programme	of	window	replacement	with	high	efficiency	
PVC units has been carried out in block 3 of Polaris House.

•	 	Installation	of	external	LED	lighting,	resulting	in	a	reduction	
in the amount of external lights while still maintaining similar 
light levels around the campus.

UK SBS is fully committed to a programme of review and 
reduction in the use of energy, finite resources and waste 
disposal.

The majority of our carbon emissions emanate from the use 
of mains supplied electricity within our head office at Polaris 
House, and it is this resource that when targeted with energy 
saving technologies will return the highest level of reductions. 
The Company looks forward to working with the Research 
Councils and other Polaris House tenants in taking forward 
plans to reduce our individual and collective footprints.

Focusing on the Future
UK SBS is committed to the ongoing provision of stable 
services whilst undertaking the necessary upgrade work to 
ensure greater operational resilience, security and improved 
performance of our systems. We continue to inform and 
engage with the Research Councils on the implementation of 
UKRI and BEIS on their Shared Service Strategy. Our Business 
Plan will be updated and presented to Shareholders for 
agreement in autumn 2017 in light of the decision made by our 
owners in July 2017. We look forward to working with BEIS and 
the Research Councils to develop the future plans for UK SBS.

For and on behalf of the Board

Joanna Brigham, Chief Executive
UK Shared Business Services Ltd
Date: 25 July 2017
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Director’s Report

UK Shared Business Services Ltd is a company limited by 
shares providing a range of services to its Shareholders, all 
of which are public bodies. While changes to our owners’ 
strategy have potentially significant implications for the 
Company, our prime objectives remain the same – to deliver 
efficient, effective and value for money services.  

The Board of Directors
UK SBS Board membership was last reviewed in October 
2015 to move from a Board comprised of independent Non-
Executive Directors to one with significantly greater owner 

representation. This ensured compliance with Regulation 12 
of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 which forms the 
framework through which UK SBS provides services to its 
owners. Two of the independent Non-Executive Directors 
remained on the Board to provide continuity. 

The table below identifies all the Company Directors that held 
office during the accounting period. 

Board Members Date Appointed
In post/date 
resigned

Chair

Tim Knighton * 31 October 2015 In post

Executive Director

Joanna Brigham  
(Executive Director)

9 November 2015 In post

Non-Executive Directors

Carol Bernstein 23 October 2014 In post

Hilary Reynolds 9 October 2015 In post

Christopher Pope 9 October 2015 In post

Emma Floyd 9 October 2015 In post

Anne Dixon 9 October 2015 In post

Nolan Smith 9 October 2015 In post

*Tim Knighton was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director from  

26 March 2015 and was appointed by the Shareholders as the Board Chair  

from 31 October 2015.
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Tim Knighton
Chair and Non-
Executive Director

Joanna Brigham
Executive Director

Carol Bernstein
Non-Executive 
Director

Anne Dixon
Non-Executive 
Director

Hilary Reynolds
Non-Executive 
Director

Chris Pope
Non-Executive 
Director

Nolan Smith
Non-Executive 
Director

Emma Floyd
Non-Executive 
Director

UK SBS Board of Directors
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Meetings of the Board and its 
Committees
The Company’s governance structure, composition and 
operation of the Board are described within the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

The Board meets formally every other month, supplemented 
by an annual away day to enable in depth consideration of 
strategic matters. Meeting frequency, membership and focus 
of each of the Board Committees is set out below:

Audit Committee - meets five times a year. Attended by 
Nolan Smith (Chair), Carol Bernstein, Hilary Reynolds and 
Graham Raikes (co-opted member from 1 April 2016). The 
Audit Committee reviews matters in relation to external 
(National Audit Office (NAO)) and internal (GIAA) audit findings 
as well as corporate risk exposure and mitigation.

Remuneration and/or Nominations Committee – the 
Board meets as the Remuneration and/or Nominations 
Committee as and when required to consider and advise the 
Board on remuneration and terms of conditions for Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors. The Board met once as 
Remuneration Committee in 2016/17.

Independent Directors
In accordance with the Company’s constitutional documents, 
all Directors – Non-Executive and Executive - are appointed by 
unanimous decision of the Shareholders.

For 2016/17, those Directors considered by the Board to be 
independent were: Tim Knighton and Carol Bernstein.

Performance Evaluation of the Board
A formal annual review was undertaken in the autumn. The 
performance of the Board was evaluated, supported by an 
external facilitator and included feedback from both Board 
members and the Executive team. The Audit Committee also 
undertook an annual review of its effectiveness and individual 
Committee members’ performance.

Dividends
No dividends were paid on ordinary shares during the period 
and the Directors do not recommend a payment of a final 
ordinary dividend.

Political and Charitable Contributions
The Company made no political donations or incurred any 
political expenditure during the period. The Company made no 
charitable donations during the period. 

Employment of Disabled People
UK SBS aims to create a productive environment, 
representative of and responsive to different cultures and 
groups, where the contributions of all employees, agency 
workers and contractors are recognised and valued and 
everyone has an equal chance to succeed. As such, UK SBS 
is committed to an active and inclusive approach to equality, 
which supports and encourages all under-represented groups, 
promotes an inclusive culture, and values diversity. In spring 
2017, UK SBS established an employee Diversity and Inclusion 
Group to share views and contribute ideas to shape and drive 
activities to encourage further inclusiveness.

The Company’s Inclusiveness Policy applies to all aspects 
of employment, including recruitment, terms and conditions 
of work, training and development, promotion, performance 
management, grievance, discipline and treatment of workers 
when their contract of employment ends. Applications for 
employment by disabled people are welcome and are always 
fully considered. In the event of an employee becoming 
disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment 
with the Company continues and that appropriate support is 
provided. 
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Slavery and Human Trafficking 
Statement
In accordance with Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 
2015, the UK SBS statement on slavery and human trafficking, 
as agreed by the Board, has been published on the UK SBS 
website. 

Employee Shareholding Vehicle
The Employee Engagement Company (EECo) was dissolved in 
October 2016.

Statement of Directors’ 
Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report 
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law 
and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year. Under that law, the directors 
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as 
adopted for use in the European Union. Under company 
law, the directors must not approve the financial statements 
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss 
of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial 
statements, the directors are required to: 

•	 	select	suitable	accounting	policies	and	apply	them	
consistently; 

•	 	make	judgements	and	accounting	estimates	that	are	
reasonable and prudent; 

•	 state	that	the	financial	statements	comply	with	IFRS;	

•	 	prepare	the	financial	statements	on	the	going	concern	
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
Company will continue in business. 

The directors are responsible for keeping accounting records 
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at 
any time the financial position of the Company and enable 
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with 
the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities. 

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the corporate and financial information included 
on the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial 
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Statement as to Disclosure of 
Information to Auditors 
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit 
information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 
2006) of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and 
each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to 
have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
Company’s auditors are aware of that information. 

Auditors
The Comptroller and Auditor General (National Audit Office) 
was re-appointed as auditor during the period, under Section 
487 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behalf of the Board

Joanna Brigham, Chief Executive 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 25 July 2017
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Annual Governance 
Statement 

The UK Shared Business Services Ltd (UK SBS) Board is 
accountable to shareholders for ensuring that the Company 
operates governance and internal controls that are fit for 
purpose and in accordance with applicable legislation. As 
well as being a company limited by shares, UK SBS is a 
public body and the Board is also accountable to the Principal 
Accounting Officer (PAO) for the Department for Business, 
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) for ensuring compliance 
with applicable Government and Departmental policies, 
instructions and guidance. Central to this is compliance 
with Managing Public Money to ensure that public money is 
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.

The UK SBS Board has delegated responsibility for the 
preparation of this Annual Governance Statement to the UK 
SBS Chief Executive, who is also a Company Director and 
Board member. The Statement has been signed by the Chief 
Executive on behalf of the Board following Board consideration 
and agreement. This statement has also been reviewed 
and countersigned by the BEIS Principal Accounting Officer 
(PAO) in his capacity as the Company’s Accounting Officer in 
accordance with Managing Public Money.

The Purpose of the Governance 
Statement
The Governance Statement forms part of the Company’s 
Annual Report and Financial Statements as a record of the 
stewardship of the Company by the Board and Executive. It 
outlines the Company’s governance, business and control 
structures, and highlights changes implemented and 
challenges addressed during the year.

Corporate Governance Framework, 
Activities and Changes 
UK SBS is a company limited by shares wholly owned by BEIS, 
the seven UK Research Councils, Innovate UK and HEFCE. 
It operates entirely within the public domain and is subject to 
Company Law, European Procurement Law and also to public 
law and administration. 

The Company’s constitution is set out in the Shareholders’ 
Agreement and Articles of Association. Also central to 

the running of the Company is the corporate governance 
framework including Board and Committee terms of reference, 
a corporate scheme of delegation, corporate policies and the 
sponsorship framework with BEIS. 

Change Programmes
Alongside business as usual (BAU) delivery, UK SBS is 
implementing an unprecedented degree of change for existing 
owners/customers, some of which are outlined below in more 
detail.

During 2015/16, the then Department for Business, Innovation 
and Skills (BIS) Executive Board agreed a shared service 
strategy that would see the transfer of all services provided 
by UK SBS to departments within the BIS group, other parts 
of government or the private sector, and the closure of the 
Company within two to three years. Concurrently, the Higher 
Education and Research Bill (granted Royal Assent on 27 
April 2017) sought to implement the recommendations from 
the Nurse Review 2015 through the integration of the seven 
Research Councils, along with Innovate UK and HEFCE’s 
Research and Knowledge Exchange functions, into a new 
body called UK Research and Innovation (UKRI). 

The Machinery of Government (MoG) changes in June 2016 
saw substantial elements of BIS merge with the Department 
for Energy and Climate Change (DECC) to form BEIS; BEIS 
were aiming to establish a single integrated department by 
the end of 2016-17. Subsequently, all BIS related programmes 
were paused or reset and are being re-evaluated to ensure 
alignment with the new department’s vision, structure and 
new ways of working. Clarity on the future direction of the 
BEIS shared service strategy is expected in late spring 2017, 
and in the meantime, it has been recognised that UK SBS will 
continue to deliver a number of services in some form until 
2019/20 at least. Through this uncertainty, UK SBS remains 
agile, responsive and focused on BAU service delivery and 
continues to inform and support both the BEIS evaluation of 
options for shared services and the changes necessary ahead 
of the creation and effective operation of UKRI.

The MoG changes also saw the creation of the Department 
for International Trade (DIT). As UKTI, an ex-BIS function, is 
the core of this new Department, UK SBS is providing initial 
services through BEIS. Compliant options for the ongoing 
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provision of services to DIT without the department coming 
into the UK SBS ownership structure have been identified and 
short term service arrangements are being agreed.

There are a number of other non-BAU projects and 
programmes to be undertaken in 2017/18 that also require 
significant UK SBS resource and technical input to implement 
whilst running in parallel to the above mentioned programmes, 
including:

•	 	Transfer	of	pension	scheme	provider	(RCPS)	and	build	of	
pension system interface;

•	 	Upgrading	Research	Council	Oracle	12.0.6	to	Oracle	
12.1.3;

•	 	Proposal	for	and	implementation	of	the	de-customisation	
of the grants finance engine;

•	 	Dual	running	changes	for	BEIS	whilst	operating	with	
two shared service providers and across two separate 
platforms;

•	 	Off-boarding	of	BBB	and	INSS	and	undertaking	entity	build	
or off-boarding of other clients.

UK SBS is working with the Research Councils and BEIS to 
enhance the governance and decision making arrangements 
to ensure that the Company is able to fully plan and deliver the 
required change to expected timelines. Through its established 
portfolio approach, UK SBS will continue to monitor the 
pressure on key resources and teams to safeguard the impact 
of delivering change and/or distracting from ongoing service 
delivery. 

Service Transfers 
Notwithstanding the pause and reset of BEIS shared services 
strategy, the UK SBS Board agreed the importance of 
appropriate sequencing and phasing of transfers to reduce 
complexity and risk. On this basis, UK SBS shareholders, 
BEIS, RCUK and client organisations agreed to the early 
transfer of Grants Administration and Property Asset 
Management (PAM) with a clear and informed assumption 
that the responsibility for these services would transfer in any 
future scenario. Full responsibility for Grants Administration 
transferred, along with the team, to EPSRC (on behalf of the 
Research Councils) on 1 January 2017. The PAM function 
and related accountability transferred to the Cabinet Office 

shadow Government Property Agency on 23 January 2017, 
prior to formal establishment of the agency later in 2017. The 
PAM team are seconded to the new unit pending their formal 
transfer, with UK SBS retaining the employment liability for the 
period of secondment.

Procurement Governance 
In January 2016 and in anticipation of an early transfer of the 
procurement function, a short term arrangement was put in 
place through which the Chief Procurement Officer reported 
to, and was directed by, the Group Commercial Director in BIS 
(now the Operations Director BEIS) for all procurement activity.  
Full day-to-day oversight of the function, its performance and 
related risks is provided by the BEIS Operations Director with 
the UK SBS Chief Executive retaining responsibilities as the 
employer of Procurement employees. However, the UK SBS 
Board retains accountability and liability for this function and, 
with the short term arrangement still in place, this remains 
an area of concern for the Board. More robust reporting and 
monitoring is being put in place until governance arrangements 
are formalised as part of the BEIS shared service strategy and 
direction.

UK SBS Board Structure and 
Operation 
UK SBS Board membership was last reviewed in October 
2015 to move from a Board comprised of independent Non-
Executive Directors to one with greater owner representation 
within the Non-Executive Directors. This also ensured 
compliance with Regulation 12 of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 which forms the framework through which 
UK SBS provides services to its owners.

The Board comprises eight members, all of whom are 
appointed unanimously by the Shareholders as follows:

•	 	Two	independent	Non-Executive	Directors,	with	one	having	
been appointed by the Shareholders as the Board Chair;

•	 	Five	Non-Executive	Directors	from	owner	organisations;	
and

•	 The	UK	SBS	Chief	Executive	(CE).

All of the Company’s Directors acknowledge and understand 
fully their responsibilities.
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Attendance/Meetings eligible to attend

Name of Director Board Audit Committee

Tim Knighton (Chair) 6/6 -

Carol Bernstein 6/6 5/5

Chris Pope 5/6 -

Emma Floyd 6/6 -

Nolan Smith 5/6 5/5

Hilary Reynolds 5/6 2/5

Anne Dixon 4/6 -

Joanna Brigham (Chief Executive) 5/6 -

Graham Raikes (co-opted member of 
the Audit Committee)

- 3/5

Board membership and Board and Audit Committee attendance from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Recognising the accountabilities of all UK SBS Board 
members (including the CE) as Company Directors to 
Shareholders, assurance to the BEIS PAO is provided by the 
Board. This is complemented by the continuation of quarterly 
assurance reports on service and internal controls from the 
CE to all client Accounting Officers, the BEIS PAO and BEIS 
functional leads, on behalf of the Board.

The UK SBS corporate governance structure was simplified 
from December 2015 and consists of a Board primarily 
comprised of owner representation and an Audit Committee, 
with the Board meeting as a Remuneration and/or 
Nominations Committee when circumstances require rather 
than maintaining separate committees. As part of its Annual 
Governance Review, the Board reviewed, not least, corporate 
policies, committee structure, membership and terms of 
reference to ensure alignment with the constitution. While 
not obliged to comply with the UK Corporate Governance 
Code, the Board agreed that they will consider and apply the 
guidance where possible and practical within the context of the 
Company’s operating environment.

The roles and responsibilities of the Board and the Audit 
Committee are defined within the Company’s Articles. Their 
terms of reference were last agreed by the Board on 29 
September 2016.

The Board met once as the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee in 2016/17 to agree the annual pay award for 
executives and employees.

The Audit Committee is independent of management and 
comprises three Non-Executive Directors, one of whom is 
the Chair, plus one external member. Representatives from 
the Company’s external auditors (National Audit Office) and 
internal auditors (Government Internal Audit Agency, GIAA) are 
invited to attend meetings. In addition, the UK SBS Corporate 
Services Director is invited to attend and report to the Audit 
Committee as the CE’s delegated SIRO. The Committee 
met five times in 2016/17, at each meeting considering inter 
alia, completed audit reports, the Company’s Risk Register, 
monitoring management responses to and progress with 
implementation of audit recommendations, receiving detailed 
presentations on risks, monitoring health and safety and the 
taking of a risk-based approach to the consideration of the 
Company’s budget and financial management. 

The Committee provides feedback to Board meetings on all 
relevant audit, risk and control issues and conducts a formal 
annual review of its own effectiveness, with the last such 
review having been completed in March 2017.
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UK SBS customer governance provides for service specific  
bi-monthly working groups through which the Company 
engages with designated client representatives to inform, 
consult and collaborate on service provision, issues and 
improvements. Further changes to the Company’s approach to 
customer engagement may be required over the course of the 
next year to ensure appropriate focus and alignment as BEIS 
shared services strategy and other programmes develop.

The Executive
During the first three months of 2016/17, the Chief Executive 
made a number of changes within the senior team and 
streamlined internal meeting arrangements. The key change 
was the creation of a ‘Senior Leadership Group’ (SLG) to 
provide broader, more resilient and collective leadership.  

Risk and Internal Control Management
The Company uses the ‘three lines of defence’ risk 
management approach and operates in line with Cabinet 
Office guidelines: 

•	 Operational	management	

•	 Central	compliance	oversight

•	 Internal	Audit	programme

To support the three lines of defence and the assurance 
framework, a revised Risk and Control framework and 
methodology was implemented from Quarter 1 2016/17, 
utilising multiple strands of risk management and monitoring 
control effectiveness: 

•	 Process	level	risk	and	controls

•	 Service	specific	risk	and	controls

•	 	Corporate	and	out	of	tolerance	risk	and	overarching	control	
effectiveness

Risk and control activities are set out in the Risk Management 
Strategy, Policy and Guidance, which were reviewed and 
endorsed by the Board and Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee reviews Corporate Risk at each meeting, and holds 
a deep-dive review of each departmental risk register over 
the course of the year to ensure a consistent approach to risk 
management in line with the Company’s risk appetite. This 
approach is consistent with Internal Audit recommendations 
from the Operational Governance review completed in January 
2016.

The Board is responsible for identifying the Company’s 
strategic risks and setting the Company’s risk appetite, last 
fulfilling these duties in February 2016 in the context of the 
then BIS shared services strategy and other programmes that 
impact the Company. The Board considers the risk register 
and mitigating actions at every meeting with scrutiny of Risk 
Management and Internal Control arrangements carried out by 
the Audit Committee.

The CE ensures active management of risk and internal 
controls through monthly SLG meetings, scrutiny of the Risk 
Register, quarterly self-assessments completed by service 
areas (first line of defence), dip sampling of controls and 
risk response plans by the Risk, Information and Security 
Compliance team (second line of defence) and an annual audit 
of the Risk Management framework completed by GIAA (third 
line of defence). This self-assessment and internal peer review 
provides the CE and Board with the required confidence that 
business processes are operating effectively as designed and 
satisfy control objectives, highlighting process steps or controls 
that require attention and the action to be taken.  

The CE provides a Quarterly Assurance report to client 
Accounting Officers based on the SLG self-assessments 
and second line of defence assessment of controls together 
with the results of internal audit reports, audit actions, critical 
performance indicator (CPI) performance and client feedback 
on key issues identified within that quarter.

Risks
The key risks facing the Company are captured in the 
Corporate Risk Register. During 2016/17 the Company 
identified and successfully managed a number of corporate 
risks including those relating to IT service degradation, service 
transfers and MoG changes; these are covered further below. 

For some time, UK SBS has highlighted and clients understood 
the risks associated with a lack of investment in legacy 
systems, specifically related to the Research Council Oracle 
Estate; this risk crystallised within a significant IT event in 
February 2016 which impacted services to the seven Research 
Councils and UK SBS.  The event gave greater impetus 
for a planned programme of work incorporating a range of 
security and resilience projects. The programme has delivered 
demonstrable improvements in resilience, stability and 
performance; further incremental improvements are planned 
for 2017/18. 

The then BIS shared service strategy provided for the transfer 
of services from UK SBS over a two to three year period; 
however the MoG changes in June 2016 resulted in a pause 
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and reset of the then BIS led programmes. During these 
periods of uncertainty, UK SBS employees have remained 
resilient and committed to the on-going delivery of stable 
services. With limited progress and clarification on the future 
of UK SBS service provision, the SLG has maintained and 
increased focus on service improvement and system stability. 
UK SBS will continue to provide input into the development of 
the BEIS shared service strategy as and when required. 

At the end of the financial year and looking ahead to 2017/18, 
the three main areas of high risk are:

•	 	Information	Security	–	whilst	the	Security	and	Resilience	
Programme is improving levels of control, this risk will 
remain until the programme completes. The Programme 
has already realised many benefits mitigating the impact 
of an information security incident, and is supported by 
ongoing mandatory training.

•	 	Employee	Recruitment,	Retention	and	Morale	–	uncertainty	
regarding plans and timelines for service transitions and 
future direction of the BEIS shared service strategy could 
result in an increase in employee turnover/absence leading 
to reduced levels of service and/or inability to deliver 
agreed change.

•	 	Change	Portfolio	–	impact	of	multiple	change	programmes	
running in parallel with conflicting prioritisation, no clear 
timelines and lack of defined programme governance 
arrangements may result in additional costs, delays in 
benefit realisation, distraction from BAU and reputational 
damage. 

Members of the SLG are risk owners and detailed risk 
response plans are in place. Risks are actively managed and 
monitored against those plans and within the Company’s risk 
appetite by the SLG, the Audit Committee and the Board. 

Data Security
The Company has not been made aware of any significant 
information security breaches in the 2016/17 financial year. 
However, there have been minor breaches which have been 
managed and reported in line with established procedures.

The high-volume transactional nature of much of the business 
and the necessary requirement for human intervention in 
processes result in these occasional minor breaches. The 
Company takes practicable precautions to minimise breaches 
and, over the year, common trends have been identified 
with mitigating measures put in place. Employees undertake 
Protecting Information training on joining the Company and 
annually thereafter. Where human error is identified disciplinary 
action may result.

Security policies, including incident management and 
reporting, are subject to regular reviews to ensure they remain 
fit for purpose. 

Whistleblowing Arrangements
The Company maintains a Whistleblowing policy which 
is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee and Board. 
The policy was last updated and approved by the Board in 
September 2016. The policy is accessible to employees via 
the Company intranet and managers are alerted to this and 
other core Company policies at induction and through training 
interventions. No incidents were raised in 2016/17. 

Macpherson Review
The review of quality assurance of Government analytical 
models undertaken by Sir Nicholas Macpherson and 
published by HM Treasury in March 2013 made a number of 
recommendations for government departments and their arm’s 
length bodies. UK SBS reviewed its use of analytical modelling 
and concluded that six business critical models were in scope. 
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Four of the models are used or are in development by the 
Property Asset Management service (which transferred out 
of the Company in January 2017 with the PAM function) and 
the remaining two by Corporate Finance. Senior Responsible 
Owners are assigned for each model, who are required to 
confirm that quality assurance is appropriate and the models 
are fit for purpose. 

Assurance on Tax Compliance 
The Alexander Review, published in May 2012, made a number 
of recommendations to ensure that the highest standards of 
integrity could be demonstrated in the tax arrangements of 
senior public appointees. All UK SBS senior employees and 
those Board members who are remunerated are paid through 
the payroll. Arrangements are in place to secure assurance 
from contractors that appropriate tax arrangements are in 
place. 

In 2016/17 the Company identified 11 contractors who were 
within scope of the Alexander Review criteria. Assurance 
that the appropriate tax arrangements are in place for all 11 
contractors was sought.

Review of Effectiveness 
The UK SBS Board is responsible for conducting an annual 
review of the effectiveness of the organisation’s governance, 
risk management and internal controls. The Governance 
Statement represents the outcome of this review.

The review is informed by the Board’s annual governance 
review; decisions and actions; the work of the Audit 

Committee; the outcomes of the quarterly internal assurance 
process; the oversight and review work of the Executives in 
relation to corporate and departmental risk mitigation and 
implementation of audit recommendations and the work of the 
Company’s internal and external auditors. 

GIAA was re-appointed as the Company’s Internal Auditors for 
the financial year 2016/17. In his Annual Report and Opinion 
dated April 2017, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) has provided 
two opinions, one for UK SBS customer facing operations and 
the other for internal operations. In both cases a Moderate 
assurance opinion has been given.

In providing his opinion on internal operations, the HIA 
acknowledges that a number of improvements have been 
made in the Company’s governance and risk management 
processes over the last two years, reflected within 2016/17 
audits, while recognising there is more to do to embed the 
changes. The HIA has noted a positive trend in internal 
audit opinions, with reducing numbers of high priority 
recommendations identified and no audits reporting 
‘unsatisfactory’ opinion in 2016/17. Core processes are broadly 
operating effectively; however, further action is required to 
address some identified system-based controls.

UK SBS has undertaken work to improve the stability of its 
systems and to bring the legacy systems back into support, 
improving its service resilience as a result and stabilising and 
improving the service provided to customers. As indicated 
earlier in this statement, the Company recognises and is 
addressing the residual risks, working in close collaboration 
with clients to deliver further incremental improvements. 
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Joanna Brigham
UK SBS Chief Executive 
On behalf of the Board 
Date: 25 May 2017

 

Alex Chisholm
BEIS Permanent Secretary and 
BEIS Principal Accounting Officer 
Date: 31 July 2017 

Conclusion 
The Board has considered the Annual Governance Statement 
and the evidence underlying its production.  

UK SBS continues on a transformation journey, which will 
be more clearly defined through the direction emerging 
from the BEIS shared service strategy and other associated 
programmes. Despite this, our people remain resilient and 
committed to the delivery of services to clients to agreed 
standards. There has been considerable activity to address 
weaknesses with which the Company started the year and 
activity continues to enhance resilience and capability.

The Board is satisfied that the organisation’s overall 
governance and internal control structures are fit for purpose, 
are being applied and are subject to appropriate scrutiny by 
the SLG, Internal Audit, the Audit Committee and the Board. 
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year ended 31 March 2017

The UK SBS Board Committee structure was simplified from 
December 2015. The Board determined that they would meet 
as a Remuneration and/or Nominations Committee in line with 
need rather than maintaining a standing committee. 

Meeting as the Remuneration and/or Nominations Committee 
the Board is responsible for:

•	 	Considering	and	agreeing	policy	for	the	remuneration	of	
the Company’s executive, being the Chief Executive (CE) 
and any other executive reporting directly to the CE. 

•	 	The	process	for	the	recruitment	and	selection,	
remuneration and terms and conditions for the CE and 
recommending appointment to the Shareholders for 
unanimous agreement. This includes ensuring compliance 
with government policies and processes where they apply.

•	 	The	appropriateness	of	the	remuneration	policy	for	all	
employees and proposals for any annual pay award 
in accordance with government guidelines are also 
considered. Remuneration in this context covers salaries, 
bonus schemes and any other benefits.

The Board met once as the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee in 2016/17 to agree the annual pay award for 
executives and employees.

Service Contracts
Non-Executive Directors and any external members of 
Committees are appointed for a fixed term of office, renewable 
by agreement. Director appointments, including the Chair and 
CE, require unanimous agreement of the Shareholders. The 
term of office agreed by Shareholders for all current Non-
Executives was two years to 31st October 2017. The notice 
period set out in terms of appointment is no less than three 
months.

Following changes to Board composition in October 2015, 
the services of the majority of Non-Executive Directors are 
provided on a pro bono basis by their employing organisations, 
these Directors being: Anne Dixon, Chris Pope, Emma Floyd, 
Hilary Reynolds and Nolan Smith. The two Independent Non-
Executive Directors are remunerated. There is also one external 
non-remunerated member co-opted to the Audit Committee.

Information regarding Directors’, External Committee 
members’ and Executives’ service contracts is set out overleaf. 
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1 Timothy Knighton was appointed as UK SBS Board Chair from 31 October 2015.
2 Carol Bernstein was also reappointed to the Audit Committee from 3 December 2015.
3 Hilary Reynolds was also appointed to the Audit Committee from 3 December 2015. 
4 Nolan Smith was also appointed Chair of the Audit Committee on 3 December 2015. 
5 Graham Raikes was re-appointed as a co-opted member of the Audit Committee for a further term from 3 December 2015 to 31 March 2016 and from 1 April 

2016 to 31 October 2017. For related parties purposes he is an employee of AHRC and is additionally the Head of the Professional Support Unit providing mid-office 

services for AHRC, EPSRC and ESRC.

Appointment Remuneration £000

Name of Director From To 2016/17 2015/16

Timothy Knighton1 (Chair) 26 March 2015 31 October 2017 0-5 5-10

Carol Bernstein2 23 October 2014 31 October 2017 5-10 10-15

Chris Pope 09 October 2015 31 October 2017 N/A N/A

Emma Floyd 09 October 2015 31 October 2017 N/A N/A

Anne Dixon 09 October 2015 31 October 2017 N/A N/A

Hilary Reynolds3 09 October 2015 31 October 2017 N/A N/A

Nolan Smith4 09 October 2015 31 October 2017 N/A N/A

Graham Raikes5 03 December 2015 31 October 2017 N/A N/A

Name Appointment Date Expired Term Notice Period

Joanna Brigham 09 November 2013 Open Ended 3 months

Gavin Foxall 01 March 2015 Open Ended 3 months

Claire Greengrass 13 May 2013 05 August 2016 3 months

Andrew Layton 03 September 2013 16 October 2016 3 months

Roger Taylor 01 May 2013 Open Ended 3 months

Tim Jones 11 January 2016 Open Ended Secondment from BEIS

John Arnott 1 January 2016 Open Ended 3 months

Directors and Committee Members (excluding the Chief Executive) (subject to audit)

UK SBS Executive Team (including the Chief Executive)
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Salary
Salary covers pensionable and non-pensionable amounts and 
includes: gross salaries; performance related pay; overtime; 
allowances and any ex-gratia payments. It does not include any 
amounts for the reimbursement of expenses directly incurred 
in the performance of an individual’s duties in accordance with 
the UK SBS travel and subsistence policy.

Benefits In Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits 
provided by the employer and treated by HMRC as a taxable 
emolument. Benefits in kind were not provided to any member 
of senior management during the financial year.

Bonuses
UK SBS did not budget or plan for bonus payments in 2016/17 
and none were paid (2015/16: none).

Pay Multiples (subject to audit)
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship 
between the total remuneration of the highest-paid director 
in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 
organisation’s workforce.

Total remuneration for these purposes includes salary (as 
defined above), non-consolidated performance-related pay, 

benefits in kind as well as severance payments. It does 
not include employer pension contributions and the cash 
equivalent transfer value of pensions.

The banded remuneration of the highest-paid Executive in UK 
SBS in the financial year 2016/17 was £120,000-£125,000 
(2015/16: £115,000-£120,000). This was 4.42 times (2015/16: 
4.91) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was 
£27,721 (2015/16: £24,182). The range of remuneration of 
the entire workforce was from £11,000 to £121,000 (2015/16: 
£14,000 to £118,000).

The Pension Scheme
The main pension scheme used by employees of UK SBS is 
the Research Councils’ Pension Scheme (RCPS), which is a 
defined benefit government pension scheme. The Company 
also offers a Partnership stakeholder pension. Further details 
of these schemes are given in the notes to the financial 
statements.

The remuneration and pension tables shown overleaf include 
the Executive.

For and on behalf of the Board

Joanna Brigham, Chief Executive 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd.   
Date: 25 July 2017
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Single total figure of remuneration (£’000)

Employee 
Name

Salary
Bonus 

Payments
Pension 
Benefits 

Total

2016/ 
2017

2015/ 
2016

2016/ 
2017

2015/ 
2016

2016/ 
2017

2015/ 
2016

2016/ 
2017

2015/ 
2016

Arnott J 90-95 20-25 0 0 0 0 90-95 20-25

Brigham J 120-125 115 - 120 0 0 49 45 165-170 160 - 165

Foxall G 85-90 85 - 90 0 0 0 0 85-90 85 - 90

Greengrass C 40-45 95 - 100 0 0 0 49 40-45 145 - 150

Layton A 50-55 90 - 95 0 0 9 19 55-60 110 - 115

Lester E 0 70 - 75 0 0 0 0 0 70 - 75

Taylor R 95-105 90 - 95 0 0 50 24 145-150 110 - 115

Remuneration of The Executive (subject to audit)

John Arnott became a member of the Executive Team on 
1 January 2016; the table above reflects remuneration from 
that date. The full time equivalent remuneration he received in 
2015/16 was £85-90k.

Edward Lester left the Company on 8 November 2015 and his 
full year equivalent salary was £150-155k.

Tim Jones, an employee of the Department for Business, 
Energy and Industrial Strategy, was seconded to UK SBS as 
Director of Finance from 11 January 2016. Costs to UK SBS 
of this secondment in 2016/17, including Employer’s NI and 
pension was £95 – 100k (2015/16 £20 - 25k). 

Andy Layton left under Voluntary Exit terms on 17 October 
2016. He received a compensation payment of £20-25k which 
was accrued for in the prior year and his full time equivalent 
salary was £90-95k.

Claire Greengrass left under Voluntary Exit terms on 06 
August 2016. She received a compensation payment of £25-
30k which was accrued for in the prior year and her full time 
equivalent salary was £95-100k.

No Executive bonuses were awarded in the years 2016/17 or 
2015/16.
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Employee 
Name

Accrued 
pension and 

lump sum 
at pension 
age as at 

31/03/2017 
(£5,000 bands)

Real increase 
in pension 

and lump sum 
at pension 
age as at 

31/03/2017  
(£2,500 bands)

Cash 
equivalent 

transfer 
value as at 
31/03/2017 

(£’000)

Cash 
equivalent 

transfer 
value as at 
31/03/2016 

(£’000)

Real increase in 
cash equivalent 
transfer value as 

at 31/03/2017 
(£’000)

Brigham J 5 – 10 2.5 - 5 134 91 32

Layton A
25 – 30 

lump sum 80-85
0 – 2.5 

lump sum 0 – 2.5
454 442 61

Taylor R
25 – 30 

lump sum 10 - 15
2.5 – 5 

lump sum 0 – 2.5
541 489 48

Pension Benefits of Senior Employees (subject to audit)

1  This is the increase in cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) as funded by the Company

Gavin Foxall, John Arnott and Claire Greengrass opted out of 
pension arrangements for the whole year, so no figures are 
shown. 

Tim Jones is an employee of the Department for Business, 
Energy and Industrial Strategy, seconded to UK SBS, so no 
figures are shown.

Details of Pension Scheme 
Employees of UK SBS are members of the Research Councils’ 
Pension Schemes (RCPS) which are defined benefit schemes 
funded from annual grant-in-aid on a pay-as-you-go basis. The 
benefits are by analogy to the Principal Civil Service Pension 
Scheme, except that while the schemes provide retirement 
and related benefits based on final or average emoluments, 
redundancy and injury benefits are administered and funded 
by the Council. The scheme is administered by the Research 
Councils’ Joint Superannuation Service.  

From 30 July 2007, employees may be in one of four defined 
schemes; either a ‘final salary’ scheme (classic, classic plus 
or premium); or a career average scheme (Nuvos). Pensions 
payable are increased annually in line with changes in the 
Consumer Prices Index (CPI). Employees’ contributions 

vary between 3% and 8.05% depending on scheme. The 
employer’s contribution is agreed by the RCPS Board of 
Management on the recommendation of the Government 
Actuary’s Department (GAD) and is currently set at 26.0% of 
pensionable pay.

The Research Councils’ Pension Scheme (RCPS) is a ‘by-
analogy’ scheme to the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme 
(PCSPS) and, as a result, any changes made to the PCSPS, 
including member contribution rates, are automatically applied 
to the RCPS.

On 1 April 2015 PCSPS launched a new pension scheme 
called Alpha. This scheme is similar to the Nuvos career 
average scheme but with the retirement age aligned to the 
state pension age. RCPS cannot at present create a by 
analogy Alpha scheme as the legislation does not currently 
permit this. Reform options are currently being discussed with 
HM Treasury and BIS (now BEIS) have given permission for 
RCPS to continue ‘as is’ beyond 1 April 2015.

A table of the contributions by pay band and scheme is 
provided overleaf.
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Annual Pensionable 
Earnings (full-time 
equivalent basis)

Classic 
2016 contributions

Premium, Classic plus 
and Nuvos 2016 contributions

Up to £15,000 3.80 4.60

£15,001 - £21,210 4.60 4.60

£21,211 - £48,471 5.45 5.45

£48,472 - £150,000 7.35 7.35

£150,001+ 8.05 8.05

Contributions by pay band and pension scheme

A Partnership Pension Account was made available to new 
staff from 1 October 2002, based on the portable Stakeholder 
Pension introduced by the Government in 2001. This is a 
defined contribution scheme. The employers pay the RCPS 
0.8% of pensionable pay to cover death in service and ill health 
benefits. The employers pay the balance to the employee’s 
private pension provider.

The accrued pension quoted is the pension the member is 
entitled to receive when they reach pension age or immediately 
on ceasing to be an active member of the scheme if they are 

already at or over pensionable age. Pensionable age is 60 
for members of classic, classic plus and premium and 65 for 
members of Nuvos.
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Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially 
assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits 
accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent 
spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a 
payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement when 
the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the 
benefits accrued in the former scheme. The pension figures 
shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued 
as a consequence of their total membership of the pension 
scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which 
disclosure applies. The CETV figures include the value of any 
pension benefit in another scheme or arrangement which the 
individual has transferred to the Research Councils’ pension 
arrangement and for which the RCPS has received a transfer 
payment commensurate with the additional pension liabilities 
being assumed. They also include any additional pension 
benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing 
additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own 
cost.

Real Increase in the Value of the CETV
The real increase in the value of the CETV reflects the increase 
effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions 
paid by the employee (excluding the value of any benefits 
transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and 
uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of 
the period. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
to the Shareholders of UK 
Shared Business Services Ltd 

I have audited the financial statements of UK Shared Business 
Services Ltd (UK SBS) for the year ended 31 March 2017 
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the 
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and International Financial 
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.  

Respective responsibilities of the 
directors and the auditor 
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities 
Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give 
a true and fair view. My responsibility is to audit and express 
an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK 
and Ireland). Those standards require me and my staff to 
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards 
for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial 
statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 
This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. In addition I read all the financial and non-
financial information in the Annual Report to identify material 

inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect 
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 
acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I 
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies I consider the implications for my report.

I am required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the expenditure and income recorded in 
the financial statements have been applied to the purposes 
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions recorded 
in the financial statements conform to the authorities which 
govern them.

Opinion on financial statements 
In my opinion: 

•	 	the	financial	statements	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	
state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of 
the loss for the year then ended; and 

•	 	the	financial	statements	have	been	properly	prepared	
in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by European Union; and

•	 	the	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	
with the Companies Act 2006. 

Opinion on regularity 

In my opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and 
income recorded in the financial statements have been applied 
to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial 
transactions recorded in the financial statements conform to 
the authorities which govern them.
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Opinion on other matter prescribed by 
the Companies Act 2006 
In my opinion: 

•	 	the	information	given	in	the	Strategic	and	Directors’	Report	
for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements and 
these reports have been prepared in accordance with the 
applicable legal requirements; and

•	 	in	light	of	the	knowledge	and	understanding	of	the	
company and its environment obtained in the course of the 
audit, I have not identified any material misstatements in 
the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

Matters on which I report by exception 
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters 
where the Companies Act 2006 requires me to report to you if, 
in my opinion: 

•	 	adequate	accounting	records	have	not	been	kept,	or	
returns adequate for my audit have not been received from 
branches not visited by my staff; or

•	 	the	financial	statements	are	not	in	agreement	with	the	
accounting records and returns; or 

•	 	certain	disclosures	of	directors’	remuneration	specified	by	
law are not made; or

•	 	I	have	not	received	all	of	the	information	and	explanations	I	
require for my audit. 

Hilary Lower (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
Date:  
For and on behalf of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General (Statutory Auditor) 
National Audit Office 
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road  
Victoria 
London 
SW1W 9SP
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Notes
2017 

£’000
2016 

£’000

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue 2 38,273 37,712

Cost of sales 2 (39,985) (38,621)

GROSS (LOSS)/PROFIT (1,712) (909) 

Administrative expenses 2 (4,917) (6,529)

OPERATING LOSS (6,629) (7,438)

Finance income 5 3  9

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 6 (6,626) (7,429)

Taxation 7 (0) (2)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (6,626) (7,431)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (6,626) (7,431)

All revenue and costs relate to continuing activities. No 
gains and losses have been recognised apart from the 
loss for the year.

The Company has very large retained losses because 
since the Company’s inception it has not included 
depreciation and amortisation within the cost base used 
to calculate service charges to clients. The Company 
seeks to set service charges such that it breaks even 
before depreciation, amortisation and the release 
of deferred income that covers certain elements of 
depreciation.

During the 12 month period the Company recorded 
a surplus of £0.7m before depreciation, amortisation 
and the release of deferred income. Included within 
the Cost of Sales is £9.1m cost of depreciation and 
amortisation. Any surplus or deficit recorded in the 
Company’s accounts is consolidated within the sponsor 
department’s accounts.

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2017
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Notes
2017 

£’000
2016 

£’000

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets 8 3,952 11,954

Property, plant and equipment 8 1,600 2,207

Other receivables 9 21 21

5,573 14,182

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables 9 3,498 2,872

Current cash and equivalents 10 3,997 3,423

7,495  6,295

TOTAL ASSETS 13,068 20,477

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 11 5,754 5,499

Provisions 12 257 400

6,011 5,899

 

NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,484 396

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables 11 1,194 2,089

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,205 7,988

NET ASSETS 5,863 12,489

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Called up share capital 15 62,016 62,016

Retained earnings (56,153) (49,527)

TOTAL EQUITY 5,863 12,489

The financial statements were approved and authorised 
for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2017 and 
were signed on its behalf by:

Joanna Brigham  
Chief Executive 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 25 July 2017

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2017



Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes

2017 

£’000

2016 

£’000

 

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 18 1,051 (44)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 1,051 (44)

 

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Purchases of intangible fixed assets 8 (53) (419)

Purchases of tangible fixed assets 8 (427) (222)

Taxation 7 0 (2)

Interest received 5 3 9

 

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (477) (634)

 

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 574 (678) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10 3,423 4,101

 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 3,997 3,423
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Called up 

share capital

£’000

Retained 

earnings

£’000

Total 

equity

£’000

Balance at 1 April 2015 62,016 (42,096)  19,920

Retained profit/(loss) for 2015/16 - (7,431) (7,431)

Balance at 31 March 2016 62,016 (49,527) 12,489

Retained profit/(loss) for 2016/17 - (6,626) (6,626)

Balance at 31 March 2017 62,016  (56,153) 5,863



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
1. Accounting Policies

1. Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and meet the accounting and 
disclosure requirements of the Companies Act 2006 
and the accounting and financial reporting standards 
issued or adopted by the International Accounting 
Standards Board as interpreted for public sector use by 
the Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) and in so far as 
these requirements are appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with IFRS requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. 
Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. There are no 
judgements or key sources of estimate uncertainty that 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements other than as disclosed in note 
8 regarding non-current assets. 

1.2 Going concern basis 

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the 
Company will continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. Financial statements are therefore 
prepared on the basis of going concern. This opinion is 
based on commitments made by the Shareholders.  

1.3 New accounting standards and interpretations 

The Company has considered the newly-issued 
accounting standards, interpretations and amendments 
to published standards that are not yet effective and 
concluded that they are either not relevant to the 
Company or that they would not have a significant 
impact on the Company’s financial statements.  

1.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised in the accounts at the point 
that it is earned through the delivery of services. Fees 
for the provision of continuing services are agreed 
with customers at the start of each financial year and 
are set at a level to cover the anticipated costs of 
service provision, but do not cover depreciation and 
amortisation. The cost of other activities is charged in 
arrears on a cost recovery basis.

Revenue is stated net of VAT where VAT is applicable. 

1.5 Deferred revenue

From time-to-time, the Company may receive 
specific amounts of income in advance of making the 
expenditure the income is intended to cover. In such 
cases, the income is deferred and released as income 
in the period in which the relevant costs are recognised, 
including some relating to non-current assets, which is 
released as income over the useful life of the relevant 
assets. If no relevant costs are incurred, the Company 
refers to the provider of that income to gain permission 
to release any deferred income that is no longer 
required.  

Deferred income is shown within liabilities in the 
statement of financial position.

1.6 Non-current assets and depreciation

The value of the Company’s non-current assets is stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Only those assets costing more than £3,000 
and having an economic value to the Company beyond 
the year in which they were bought are capitalised. 
Where parts of an item have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate assets.

Depreciation is applied on a straight line basis over 
the estimated useful economic lives of assets. Assets 
under construction are not depreciated. Depreciation 
methods, useful lives and residual values of non-current 
assets are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date. 
Donated assets are recorded at nil value. 
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1.6.1 Intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets relate to purchased software, software 
licences and certain system development costs. 

1.6.2 Tangible non-current assets

Tangible assets include items such as IT hardware and 
fixture and fittings.

1.6.3 Estimated useful economic lives of  

non-current assets

The following estimated useful economic lives are used 
in the calculation of depreciation.

Tangible assets 
Fixtures and fittings:  5 years 
IT hardware:   5 years

Intangible assets 
IT software:  5 years 
IT development costs: 5 years 
Intangible assets within the  
12.1.3 ERP service delivery 
platform:    5 years 
Intangible assets within the  
12.0.6 ERP and grants service 
delivery platform:   7 years

1.6.4 Impairment review

Depreciation methods, estimated useful economic lives 
and residual values of non-current assets are reviewed 
at least at each balance sheet date. Any resultant 
impairment charges are charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and the carrying value of the 
relevant non-current asset is reduced to the recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the 
amount to be recovered through use or sale. 

1.7 Financial instruments

The nature of the Company’s activities and the method 
of its funding mean that the Company is not exposed 
to the degree of financial risk faced by non-public 
sector entities. Moreover, financial instruments play 
a much more limited role in creating or changing risk 
than would be typical of the listed companies to which 
IAS 32, 39 and IFRS 7 mainly apply. The Company has 
limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and 
financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-
day operational activities and are not held to change the 
risks facing the Company in undertaking its activities.

Assets and liabilities have been accounted for at historic 
cost, which due to their nature, is not materially different 
from Fair Value. 

1.8 Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current 
and deferred tax. Current corporation tax is the 
expected tax payable on the taxable income for the 
year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at 
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to the tax 
payable in respect of previous years.

1.9 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing 
differences that have originated but not reversed at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised 
to the extent that it can be regarded as more likely than 
not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which 
the future reversal of the underlying timing differences 
can be deducted.

1.10 Employee benefit costs

The main pension scheme used by employees of the 
Company is the Research Councils Pension Scheme 
(RCPS), which is a defined benefit government pension 
scheme. The Company’s contributions to RCPS are 
defined contributions charged to the Income Statement 
in accordance with actuarial recommendations. The 
Company does not face actuarial gains or losses. 
Liabilities for the payment of future benefits are a charge 
on RCPS and are consequently not included in these 
financial statements.



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

1.11 VAT

Revenue is stated net of VAT where VAT is applicable.  
The Company has to comply with a limited partial 
recovery formula for VAT purposes and therefore 
expenditure and fixed asset purchases are shown 
inclusive of VAT where applicable. Residual input tax 
is reclaimable by the application of the partial recovery 
formula and is taken as negative expenditure.

1.12 Operating leases

Amounts paid under the terms of operating leases are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

1.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal 
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for 
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit 
will be required to settle the obligation, and where the 
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
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2. Revenue, Cost of Sales, Administrative Expenses and Auditor’s Remuneration

2. Revenue, Cost of Sales, Administrative Expenses and Auditor’s Remuneration

2.1 Revenue

Rendering of services 2016/17 2015/16
£’000 £’000

Arts and Humanities Research Council 43 86

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council 155 154

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 34,271 33,564

Economic and Social Research Council 52 77

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council 652 447 

Higher Education Funding Council for England 40 40

Medical Research Council 877 385

Natural Environment Research Council 80 146

Science and Technology Facilities Council 169 147

Innovate UK 80 446

Revenue from related parties 36,419 35,492

 

Other Non-Departmental Public Bodies 50 72

Other Central Government Bodies 1,510 1,818

Other income 294 330

Total revenue 38,273 37,712

2.2 Cost of sales

The cost of sales relating to the above revenue is as follows

2016/17 
£’000

2015/16 
£’000

Cost of sales of continuing activities 39,985 38,621

2.3 Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses within the Statement of Comprehensive Income are as follows

2016/17 
£’000

2015/16 
£’000

Payroll costs 2,236 3,607

Administrative costs 2,619 2,856

External audit 62 66

Total administrative expenses 4,917 6,529

Payroll costs include social security costs and employer’s pension contributions.

The external audit fee was £52k plus VAT.

No fees were paid to the Company’s auditors other than for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts as above.
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4. Reporting of Civil Service and Other Compensation Schemes – Exit Packages

3. Employees and Directors
2016/17 

£’000
2015/16 

£’000

Wages and salaries 15,978 16,983

Social security costs 1,512 1,205

Other pension costs 3,687 3,843

Restructuring costs 0 233

21,177 22,264

The employees’ and directors’ payroll costs are included with the cost of sales and administrative expenses 
disclosed in note 2.

Directors’ remuneration is stated in the Remuneration Report.

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows:

2016/17 2015/16
(Restated)

Average number of employees 544 572

Average number of employees (full time equivalent) 517 537

Average number of contractors 22 27

Average number of secondees in 3 2

Included in the figures above are 85 employees on fixed term contracts with a combined salary of £2,039k.

4. Reporting of Civil Service and Other Compensation Schemes – Exit Packages

Exit Packages cost band

Number of 
Compulsory 

Redundancies 

Number of  
other departures 

agreed

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band

2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16

<£10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£10,000 - £25,000 0 0 0 4 0 4

£25,000 - £50,000 0 0 0 5 0 5

£50,000 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£100,000 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£150,000 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total number of exit packages by type 0 0 0 9 0 9

Total resource cost (£’000) 0 0 0 233 0 233
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5. Net Finance Income  
6. Loss before Income Tax 

7. Income Tax

5. Net Finance Income
2016/17 

£’000
2015/16 

£’000

Finance income:

Bank interest receivable 3 9

6. Loss before Income Tax
The loss before income tax is stated after charging:

2016/17 
£’000

2015/16 
£’000

Depreciation – tangible assets 1,034 1,089

Amortisation – intangible assets 8,055 8,224

Loss on disposal of intangible assets 0 118

External auditors’ remuneration 62 66

7. Income Tax
The income tax charge in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises Corporation Tax charged at 20% (2015/16 
20%) on bank interest receivable plus any adjustments arising from prior years.  Corporation Tax of £0k is recognised for 
2016/17 (2015/16 £2k).  

There is no deferred tax in these financial statements relating to 2016/17 or 2015/16.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised as the Company is not likely to incur profits in the near future against which 
such assets may be offset.



8. Non Current Assets

8. Non Current Assets
INTANGIBLE ASSETS Software 

and licences 
£’000

COST

At 1 April 2016 59,327

Additions 53

Disposals (0)

At 31 March 2017 59,380

AMORTISATION

At 1 April 2016 47,373

Eliminated on disposals (0)

Charge for year 8,055

At 31 March 2017 55,428

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2017 3,952

COST

At 1 April 2015 59,307

Additions 419

Disposals (399)

At 31 March 2016 59,327

AMORTISATION

At 1 April 2015 39,430

Eliminated on disposals (281)

Charge for year 8,224

At 31 March 2016 47,373

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2016 11,954

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 

EQUIPMENT

Plant and 
machinery 

£’000

COST

At 1 April 2016 9,971

Additions 427

Disposals (2,166)

At 31 March 2017 8,232

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2016 7,764

Eliminated on disposals (2,166)

Charge for year 1,034

At 31 March 2017 6,632

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2017 1,600

COST

At 1 April 2015 9,770

Additions 222

Disposals (21)

At 31 March 2016 9,971

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2014 6,696

Eliminated on disposals (21)

Charge for year 1,089

At 31 March 2016 7,764

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2016 2,207

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of the non-current assets were reviewed by the Company as at  
31 March 2017.  

The Company currently delivers services to the Research Councils using the original Oracle 12.0.6 platform and to BEIS and 
other clients using the newer 12.1.3 platform.   

As at 31 March 2017, the net book value of the 12.0.6 development included within intangible assets was £1.8m and its useful 
economic life (UEL) was estimated to end in October 2017.   

As at 31 March 2017, the net book value of the 12.1.3 development included within intangible assets was £1.7m and its UEL 
was estimated to end in October 2018.
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9. Trade and Other Receivables
10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

9. Trade and Other Receivables
2016/17 

£’000
2015/16 

£’000

Current

Trade receivables and accrued income due from related parties 1,423 662

Other Central Government Bodies 83 66

Public Corporations and Trading Funds  0 35

External to Government  

Other trade receivables 95 203

Prepayments and other accrued income 1,897 1,906

 

3,498 2,872

Non Current

Trade receivables due from related parties 21 21

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2016/17 

£’000
2015/16 

£’000

Current cash and equivalents 3,997 3,423

3,997 3,423

Cash comprises cash at bank.



11. Trade and Other Payables
12. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

11. Trade and Other Payables
2016/17 

£’000
2015/16 

£’000

Current

Trade payables and accrued expenditure due to related parties 854 216

Other Central Government Bodies 374 0

Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0

Deferred income received from related parties 1,336 1,866

External to Government:

Other trade payables 159 221

Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 3,031 3,196

5,754 5,499

Non Current

Trade payables due to related parties 55 55

Deferred income received from related parties  1,139 2,034

1,194 2,089

12. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
2016/17 

£’000
2015/16 

£’000

Provision for costs arising from the cancellation of contracts 257 400

257 400

The £400k provision as at 31 March 2016 related mainly to legal costs regarding a potential claim arising from the 
cancellation of a contract. This provision was released in 2016/17 when a settlement payment of £500k was made.

The £257k provision as at 31 March 2017 relates to an onerous lease which has arisen as a result of the company’s move 
from one office premises to another.
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13. Leasing Agreements 
14. Financial Instruments and Capital Risk Management

13. Leasing Agreements
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

2016/17 
£’000

2015/16 
£’000

Within one year 309 182

Between one and five years 0 377

In more than five years 0 0

309 559

14. Financial Instruments and Capital Risk Management

Risk management is carried out by the Executive Team under the direction of the Board. The Company’s objectives when 
managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide benefits for shareholders 
and other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Credit risk

The Company has credit risk in the form of receivables from its customer companies. These companies are all in the 
public sector, have an appropriate credit history and have undertaken to pay on agreed terms.

Liquidity risk

The Company evaluates and follows continuously the amount of liquid funds needed for business operations in order to 
secure the funding needed for business activities.  

Cash flows and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the operating income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

Fair value

Assets and liabilities have been accounted for at historic cost, which due to their nature is not materially different from 
Fair Value.  

Leases included above are referenced in Note 21. Events after the Reporting Period.



15. Called Up Share Capital

15. Called Up Share Capital

Ownership of the Company

As at 31 March 2017, the shareholders of the Company were as below.

•		 	The	Department	for	Business,	Energy	and	Industrial	Strategy	(BEIS)	held	one	Government	Department	(GD)	Share	
carrying 51% of the votes controlling the company.

•	 	The	seven	UK	Research	Councils,	Innovate	UK	and	the	Higher	Education	Funding	Council	for	England	(HEFCE)	each	
held one Non-Government Department (NGD) Share, together carrying 49% of the votes.  

•	 The	Department	for	Business,	Energy	and	Industrial	Strategy	(BEIS)	held	four	Deferred	Shares.

•	 	The	Department	for	Business,	Energy	and	Industrial	Strategy	(BEIS)	also	held	62,016,358	Non-Voting	Shares.	Holders	
of Non-Voting Shares are entitled to 100 per cent of the profits of the Company. The holders of GD, NGD and Deferred 
Shares have no right to dividends or to otherwise participate in the profits of the Company.

Share Capital  
Allotted, issued and fully paid:

Nominal 2017 2016

Number Class Value £ £

1 Government Dept £1 1 1

9 Non-Government Dept £1 9 9

4 Deferred £1 4 4

62,016,358 Non-Voting £1 62,016,358 62,016,358

62,016,372 62,016,372
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16. Employee Benefit Obligations

16. Employee Benefit Obligations

Pension plans

The Research Councils’ Pension Scheme (RCPS) is in all respects ‘by-analogy’ with the Principal Civil Service Pension 
Scheme, except that the employer’s contribution is determined separately on the recommendation of the Government 
Actuary Department (GAD). It is a notionally funded, contributory, defined benefit scheme, and is administered by the 
Research Councils’ Joint Superannuation Services. The Scheme’s accounts are prepared by the Biotechnology and 
Biological Sciences Research Council (BBSRC) on behalf of the Chief Executive of BBSRC as Accounting Officer for RCPS.

The employer’s contribution for those Company employees who participate in RCPS is agreed by RCPS Board of 
Management on the recommendation of the GAD and in 2016-2017 was set at 26% of pensionable pay. 

The RCPS is a defined benefit scheme, which is a multi-employed defined benefit scheme of which UK SBS is unable to 
identify its share of the assets and liabilities. The RCPS prepares separates accounts and the Company contributions for 
2016/17 were £3.7m (2015/16 £3.8m).

Some employees have retained alternative pension arrangements that originated with the research council from which they 
transferred. The Medical Research Council Pension scheme is a defined benefit scheme and the United Kingdom Atomic 
Energy Authority Scheme is a final salary scheme. For 2016-2017 the employer’s contribution for these employees ranged 
between 12.9% and 26.0%. UK SBS also offers a stakeholder pension which attracts age-related employer contributions 
between 3% and 12.5%. Additionally, any level of optional employee contributions is matched by a further employer 
contribution up to maximum of 3% of pensionable salary.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that 
would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual 
requires that “the period between formal actuarial valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in 
intervening years”.

The last formal actuarial valuation undertaken for RCPS as at 31 March 2006 was completed in 2008-09. Consequently, a 
formal actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2010 was initiated but was not completed as at 31 March 2017. 

Subsequently however, formal actuarial valuations for unfunded public service pension schemes have been suspended by 
HM Treasury on value for money grounds, while consideration is given to recent changes to public service pensions and 
while future scheme terms are developed as part of the reforms to public service pension provision. The primary purpose of 
the formal actuarial valuations is to set employer and employee contribution rates, and these are currently being determined 
under the new scheme design.



17. Related Parties
F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

17. Related Parties
Revenue from related parties is detailed in note 2. 

Expenditure with related parties during the year was as follows
2016/17 

£’000
2015/16 

£’000

Arts and Humanities Research Council 39 33

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council 931 658

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 261 315

Economic and Social Research Council 0 0

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council 54 86

Higher Education Funding Council for England 0 0

Medical Research Council 0 0

Natural Environment Research Council 108 42

Science and Technology Facilities Council 69 135

Innovate UK 0 0

1,462 1,269

Expenditure with related parties is for various items, the biggest being rent and building services, printing services 
and staff secondments.

Trade receivables and accrued income balances with related parties 
Due within 1 year:

2016/17 
£’000

2015/16 
£’000

Arts and Humanities Research Council 16 28

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council 58 52

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 806 160

Economic and Social Research Council 6 36

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council 367 74

Higher Education Funding Council for England 7 7

Medical Research Council 26 162

Natural Environment Research Council 14 38

Research Council Pension Scheme 0 17

Science and Technology Facilities Council 43 20

Innovate UK 80 68

1,423 662

Due over 1 year:

Research Council Pension Scheme 21 21
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18. Reconciliation of Loss Before Income Tax to Cash Generated from Operations 

Trade payables and accruals balances with related parties 
Due within 1 year:

2016/17 
£’000

2015/16 
£’000

Arts and Humanities Research Council 18 4

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council 790 86

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 31 0

Economic and Social Research Council 0 5

Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council 0 7

Higher Education Funding Council for England 0 0

Medical Research Council 0 28

Natural Environment Research Council 7 38

Research Council Pension Scheme 0 21

Science and Technology Facilities Council 8 27

Innovate UK 0 0

854 216

Due over 1 year:

Research Council Pension Scheme 55 55

Related Party Disclosures

The Company is a separate legal entity, wholly-owned by several customers, providing services to multiple customers. 
Transactions with related parties take place on an arm’s-length basis. The Company seeks to set service charges such 
that it breaks even before depreciation, amortisation and the release of deferred income that covers certain elements of 
depreciation.  

The Company is deemed to be a state-controlled entity because the only shareholders are publicly-owned entities. 

The shareholders at 31 March 2017 are the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS), the seven 
UK Research Councils, Innovate UK (TSB) and the Higher Education Funding Council for England (HEFCE).

The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

18. Reconciliation of Loss Before Income Tax to Cash Generated from Operations
2016/17 

£’000
2015/16 

£’000

Total loss for the year (6,626) (7,429)

Depreciation and amortisation charges 9,089 9,313

Loss on disposal of intangible asset 0 118

Finance income (3) (9)

2,460 1,993 

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (626) 1,703

Increase/(decrease) in provisions (143) 0

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (640) (3,740)

Cash generated from operations 1,051 (44)



19. Interests in Subsidiaries – Dissolved
20. Special Payments 
21. Events after the Reporting Period

19. Interests in Subsidiaries - Dissolved
During 2013/14 the Company purchased a subsidiary in order to secure a company name and it later exchanged 
names with the subsidiary. Therefore the Company had the following non-trading subsidiary, which had no income or 
expenditure and was dissolved on 11 October 2016.

Name: RCUK Shared Services Centre Ltd 
Registered number: 8317077, registered in England and Wales

20. Special Payments 
Special payments include extra-contractual payments to third parties and compensation payments.

2016/17 
£’000

2015/16 
£’000

Total amount 520 0

Total number of cases 2 0

The payment of £500k in 2016/17 relates to the settlement arising from the cancellation of a contract.

21. Events after the Reporting Period
After the reporting period, the Company’s sponsoring department, the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial 
Strategy (BEIS), and the UK Research and Innovation Shadow Executive Board (UKRI) agreed that UK SBS will remain 
their shared services provider. BEIS and UKRI have agreed that they will jointly invest in and develop a new system 
solution for implementation in 2020 and continue joint ownership of UK SBS, leveraging and building on the previous and 
planned investment in the Shared Services Centre.  

There have been no other significant events between the year end and the date of approval of these accounts which 
would require a change to the information presented.
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